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CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel).,. Okay. We’re in order. First, Members, including the Chair,
we shall turn off our noisemaking devices please. Okay. This morning, we will
continue our review of the Mayor’s proposed Budget for 2017. This is Friday, the 22nd
of April 2016. Before we continue our review today under Revolving Funds, Special
Funds, we shall take public testimony. But first let me introduce the Members of the
Committee, Vice-Chairman Mr. White.
.

.

.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. And our Committee Members, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning and aloha, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We excuse Mr. Guzman. At this time, we shall take public testimony.
This Committee rules, you have three minutes, three minutes only to give comment on
the proposed budget. When you’re called, please state your name, the organization if
you represent such. Well assist you with your time. At 2-minute 30-second mark,
the yellow light will go on indicating you have thirty seconds to conclude. And at the
red light, like a stop sign, you shall stop. Members may ask questions for clarification
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on testimony presented. With that well ask Mr. Robert Collesano to come forward
please and he will be followed by Mr. Tom Croly,
.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
MR. COLLESANO: Good morning, Mr. Chair and

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. COLLESANO: --Councilmembers, good morning. Thanks for the opportunity of being
here this morning. My name is Robert Collesano.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Collesano.
MR. COLLESANO: Robert Collesano and I’m the executive director of the Mental Health
Association here on Maui. W&re passing out a little diagram of our services that I put
together for you. And I just wanna thank you very much for your support for the
Mental Health Association here on Maui. We’ve been here 40 years and previously I
think maybe a little more quiet than it has been since I’ve become the executive
director. I’ve been there about four years and prior to me was Colleen O’Shea was the
executive director of Mental Health Association, great, great lady, great heart and I
took over her, from her about four years ago. So in a minute and a half, I’m gonna tell
you everything that we do. If youll look at the diagram, it’s one, two, three, four, five,
six... seven basic items. And what’s unique about the Mental Health Association is
that we work a lot with volunteers so w&re very, very cost effective. In green, first
thing we do is we provide peer-to-peer support for recovering people, recovering from
mental illness. We have people with mental illness helping other people. Number two,
we have family support education programs. Just last night it was, yesterday was
Thursday and I was teaching a course up in Haiku, 15 family members with sons and
daughters in the Molokini unit. And when somebody has a mental illness, it just
devastates a family. So we not only provide services to people with mental illness, we
provide services to their families. And then our community education piece in blue,
number three. You might get the e-mails that I send out on a pretty regular basis. I’m
educating the community about different things, trainings and so on. Thirty seconds
left. These are all of the committees that I participate on, on the bottom, I’m
chairperson of the Maui Service Area Board which is a Governor-appointed position.
In purple, we do a very unique program called Mental Health First Aid. It’s for the
average person on the street teaching them about mental illness. I go into the jail
every Wednesday and do a support group for the people in the jail and then I make
community web sites. So I wanna just thank you for your support of the Mental
Health Association.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your comments this morning.
questions for the gentleman on his testimony? Thank you very much

--

-j

-

Members, any
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MR. COLLESANO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for being here this morning. Tom Croly, please.

MR. CROLY: Aloha, Chair. Aloha, Committee. Tom Croly speaking on my own behalf.
Mahalo for your careful scrutiny of the Budget. This is my tenth year of following
Budget review and every year I do learn something new. And I appreciate the level of
detail that you guys keep an eye on the monies, the people’s money being spent. I
wanna make comment on a few of the rates and fees. I support the 5-cent per gallon
gas tax increase. for me driving approximately 10,000 miles a year at 25 miles per
gallon, this extra 5 cents will cost me $20 a year additional in my tax or in my.. .the
cost of gas and a total of about $92 a year. If that means that we get well-maintained
roads, then I am all for it. Electric cars don’t use gas. It might seem appropriate to
assess like a $50 fee on their registration to make up for that. Something like that
makes sense to me. Moving on to the increase in the water meter fees, it would seem
appropriate to increase the 5/8-inch water meter fee as recommended if this indeed
leads to better infrastructure for our water. And it may seem counterintuitive but I
believe that that $6,000 increase in water meter fee will lead to lower-priced housing.
And that’s because the cost of a house is not based on that $6,000 or that $12,000
from the water meter fee. It fundamentally is based on supply and demand. And if we
get more supply because we free up water and people are able to get water meters,
that will bring down the cost of housing. So I don’t think that we should be concerned
about an extra $6,000 in the construction cost ‘cause that’s not what drives the cost
of housing fundamentally. Budget Chair, made reference to adjusting tax rates for
land and building separately and I have always supported that approach to our
taxation. However, there’s policy decisions that would be baked into that and I think
that you need to have a full discussion of what those policy decisions are and it
shouldn’t be done at the last minute when you guys are trying to balance the Budget.
But I do believe that it’s fundamentally a sound thing for us to consider. Finally, I
wanna make recognition of those taxpayers who really pay the bills around here and
those are the 15,000 or so, folks with condos and second homes here on Maui. Those
folks have often been maligned recently for a host of social ills that we have. But I
think we have to recognize and looking at the numbers, those are the folks that are
paying the bills. Theyre paying between two and ten times the rate that other folks
are paying so please extend them a mahalo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Croly. Members, questions on
testimony Mr. Croly presented this morning? We thank you for your thoughts and
your recommendations. Well go to our Hana Office and ask, Ms. Lono, is there
anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Lanai, Ms. Fernandez, anyone wishing to provide testimony?
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MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Members, our Molokai District Office is not available
today. So with no further request for testimony, we shall close testimony for today’s
meeting with no objections.

COUNCILMEM3ERS: No objections.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

ITEM 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 16-29)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REVENUES
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Members. Testimony is closed. This morning we
will go through Special Funds/Revolving Funds. We have sent you our schedule of
the lineup of how w&re gonna approach it. So the first department we are going to
take up is Police. On your appendix folder you’ll find that under Page 37 Special
Purpose Revenues Schedule of Revolving and Special Funds [sic], I will direct you to
alphabet letter R. Mann System Revolving Fund. Mr. Baz, comments?
-

MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I’m actually trying to look up, the Police Department
provided a response to a Committee’s request that has information regarding this
fund. But basically the fund was established by Chapter 8.34 of Maui County Code
and the Department has been working with a vendor to try to manage the process of
the requirement of the Code which is to have every residential and commercial alarm
system be connected. That is, you know, that’s connected to our emergency response
system, to be registered and pay a fee. Let’s see.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, any questions on this one? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
-:

-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:

And so zeroes at this point?

The fund has zero monies?

What’s...
MR. BAZ:

Yeah, we have not started collecting this yet.

I don’t know the status of that

agreement. I don’t... do you know?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, any comments or are you aware of any change in status
regarding this new fund?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. No, I believe it’s a relatively new portion of the Code. I’m
not sure if it’s been fully rolled out yet. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Mr. Chair, I believe that the last report we got at the
PTA meeting back in February was that they were still fmalizing the methodology of
paying and how these fmes would be paid out. So I will make it a point and you could
put it in the notes that the next PTA meeting that I can make available, Ill bring them
back in to get an update in what’s happening. So that’s my report on that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah and thank you for that, Mr. Victorino. The Chair is concerned as
part of the recommendations from this Committee to Council would be that prior to
next budget cycle, standing committees should review and take up the Revolving
Funds and then when we come to Budget, I would have the committee ask for the
reports. I’m trying to find a way to adjust the... this Committee’s schedule during the
process to spend more time on the specific dollars and whatnot so I’m gonna be
looking to the committees to present their recommendations so that we don’t need to
really do this
--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --part in the Budget process.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, that’s an excellent, excellent suggestion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It should be done all prior to Budget.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Even the operations, I think we’ve all gotten to this
point where we have the committees giving us operational reports so when we get
here, we can do the business of money, not operations. So excellent idea, Mr. Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And not only the funds but the Chair is planning to also refer to you as
standing committee chairs, the responsibility of reviewing, modifying and amending
goals and objectives. I rather not do it in this Committee at this time of the process.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excellent, yeah.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Excellent idea.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let us move. I’m gonna bring this up because there has been
some.. .we’ve discussed this a little, But I think that if you wanna have a little bit more
discussion this morning, I will be happy to have you present it. You do know, I did
extend you have ‘til 1:30, 1:30 p.m., not 1:31, 1:30 p.m. to send your proposal or
recommendations or suggestions to the Chair for consideration of the Chair’s plan to
be presented on Monday. So with that I’ll direct you to letter N. under Parks and
Recreation, there is a Ocean Recreational Activity Fund component. I’m gonna ask the
Members if they have any questions or comments but Ill ask Mr. Baz if he has any
opening comments for this fund.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So the Ocean Recreational Activities Fund is Section
13.04.340 of Maui County Code establishes the ability for us to restrict and permit
activities at our ocean beaches so that vendors who would like to provide for-fee
services can do that but they have to provide us with the fee. We have the Department
of Parks and Recreation Director Kaala Buenconsejo here if you have any questions.
Also at this time I’d would reference FN-9 response. This has the balances as of
April 15th the Department of Finance provided and this is one of those funds that’s
available.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Director Buenconsejo, any comments you’d
like to share regarding this fund with the Members?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Excuse me, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Yoshimura?
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MS. YOSHIMURA:
Sorry.
Members, PR-9 we received on April 20th from the Parks
Department also talks about the CORA fees.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Director, any comments on the fund at this
time?

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, thank you, Chair, Members. Regarding the... again the Ocean
Recreational Activity Fund that is based on our CORA fees and used for any
maintenance and repairs for the particular areas as well as future growth that we are
considering as we move forward with a possible concessions now enterprise area.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. fli ask Mr. Victorino if he has questions.
COUNCILMEMBER WCTORINO: Your fees are.. .there’s no rate increase in these fees
because CORA was here last night and they’ve been very concerned about rate
increases. So these reflect the present, there is no rate increases, Mr. Buenconsejo?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, no fees were proposed at this current fiscal year Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So yeah, it is reflected of the current fee structure.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Current fees were?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: The fees were increased this fiscal year

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --compared to the past.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right. But this coming year, we are not proposing, you’re
not proposing any increases at this time?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: No. It was not in the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, then it’s not in the Budget. Thank you. Thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
-8-
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: No questions.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran, any questions at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time, Chair, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll? I know.. .the Chair notices yeah, there is a.. .the
Department has not proposed increases, But one of your responses that I think
eventually I would like the proper committee to deal with is whether or not you should
limit the total amount of permits any one entity can have. I think that is a discussion
that needs to be held. And a part of that discussion will also help Chairmans like
myself be able to come up with appropriate considerations of rates and fees for this
type of program. So I would ask you, Director, if you could work with our appropriate
Committee Chair in the near, in the future to have those type of discussions on what
is a fair amount if and when we should cap the total amount of permits any one entity
can have at one time. So, Members, no questions on this?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I’m sorry if it was asked while I was out of the room but last
night during the testimony, during the public testimony, it was alleged and, you know,
we got... amazing how things get mixed up. The testifier said that Director had
mentioned that doubling the fees would be okay. I just wanna make sure I have that
right,
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ‘Cause I don’t know when we gonna make this decision and you
may not be in the room.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? So doubling the fees meaning I guess from a $1,000 to $2,000
per
--

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --permit. from the Department’s standpoint, for those businesses
who are doing business, that’s $2,000 for the entire year to operate on public
property. Do I think it’s unforeseen or it can’t be done? Realistically, I don’t see it
being a problem for a vendor to pay the 2,000. That’s just my personal. Yeah. And
then again with our park security officers, our rangers, you know, being out of the
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General Fund, you know, there is room for growth. The reason there wasn’t an actual
proposed increase from the Department was because the way the future of the CORA
is heading, we’re gonna be revamping that whole structure of CORA. But from the
Department’s standpoint, would that hurt a true business that’s being operated from
the beach part of it, my personal and Department’s feeling is no. So increasing it to
$2,000 for the entire year isn’t a stretch at all. And then as Chair Hokama mentioned,
you know, as far as limiting permits, there are some vendors who have 10. There are
some who have one. And the way the current fee structure is set, I believe the first 2
permits is at $1,000, and then it tiers every 1 after that is at 500. Rather, there needs
to be a tier system, that’s up to this body to decide. From the Department’s
standpoint, again, with the revenue that is generated from these businesses, asking
1,000 or 2,000 or whatever the price is set at, isn’t a far stretch for a year worth of
having that permit done.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --Mr. Director. You know, it’s really important that we hear both
sides of these things because they’re impressions that are left so I wanted to make
sure it was clear. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And have you discussed what we’re
gonna do with the EAR Committee as far as potential of raising the rates or going into
an REP system or is that gonna be scheduled for this year?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: That will be scheduled. We are putting that into EAR Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So it will be a committee, we also are aware, we will be notifying the
user groups as well. Having committee input, getting together a group of them as well
to figure out what’s the best way for everybody. So that will be worked on within the
fiscal year.. .well starting this year as well. But for the Fiscal Year ‘17, we will start
those meetings with the user groups as well as with the EAR Committee and again,
massaging that until we can find a happy place.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Excellent. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Happy place.

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. One of the concerns that was brought up last night

was the lack of enforcement. So we give the permits and then there are other people
that are operating without permits, basically taking advantage of the County, taking
advantage of DLNR and so forth. So that’s a concern that I think we have to keep in
mind. If we’re not gonna provide some protection for these operators, I’m not sure
that it’s fair to increase the fees. The other question that I have was for DLNR, I’m, I
believe they’d also pay a fee to the State and I recall that it’s a percentage of their
revenues. Do you know what the fee is?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, I would get back to the fee. There is a fee structure. I believe
it’s a $250 a month or... and then a fee if you don’t make that revenue but I can get
that transmitted up to you folks.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: My recollection is that it’s a percentage of their revenue.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, either/or. It’s a either/or. It’s a flat...
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I think it’s...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whichever is greater.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I think it’s important for us to understand what other fees they’re
paying as well because I know that the... through the harbors that DLNR. .so the State
is basically collecting a GET and a percentage and I can’t remember what it is. I think
it’s 2 percent of their revenue so we need to be mindful of what DLNR is charging as
well. So I’d.. .yeah, I think we need to be cautious on how we proceed with this
because one of the testifiers last night said that in the 16 years that she’s had a
permit, she’s only seen a DLNR or not a DLNR, a ranger five times. Meanwhile, folks
are out there right next, you know, right next door operating the same kind of
business without a permit and there’s no enforcement. I don’t think that’s right. And
I don’t think we can look at that and say were doing our side of the bargain, so.
.

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --if I may? Chair White, I think for that, definitely Ill get that
numbers for you folks for the State issue. But regarding the park rangers from where
they stand today, I don’t think there’s a operation out there that the presence that we
have currently this past year with a full staff has been night and day to what it was
none. So I do agree with some of the comments that in the past, there wasn’t any
-11-
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enforcement. This past fiscal year, I can assure you there’s been enforcement.
However, at the same time, there are some vendors out there, not CORA vendors who
play that game, who know how to play the system as far as play that it’s a State role,
the County role and jumping in the water and not receiving monies or transactions on
the beach. And in order for the rangers to actually enforce it, they have to physically
see a cash transaction on the beach or I can say that’s my family from Chicago that
I’m teaching and taking out to the water. So those are those, you know, those things
that for the law that were trying to battle. W&re are working with State DLNR with
Paul Sensano and getting that, kinda being on the same page and the same system.
But for someone who’s been in the vending, or CORA vendor for 16 years, I think it’s
kinda odd to say that she’s never seen or five time seen a park ranger out there. I fmd
that hard to believe. Within the past year at least, I can speak for the past year and a
half that I’ve been here. Our force now is pretty strong at present but they... do they
catch everybody? No. But we are doing our best with the rules that are set in place to
achieve that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Do you have any rules that allow enforcement if you’re advertising that
service like we have with the short-term rentals?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: No, there is currently nothing written in that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. That maybe something we need

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, definitely.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --to give you guys for an added enforcement. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Let’s talk about the fund you guys are getting to operations that I would

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and I was gonna mention that but...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --rather you guys do in the Primary Standing Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. And

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I really wanna talk about the fund itself, do you feel
that... the real question I have for you is not about all this operation but the fund itself.
You have...we have it tiered where 1,000; 1,000 then 500; 500. So someone who has
10 permits would pay 8,000; $10,000, right? Just real quick math. So if you raise it
to 2,000; 2,000; 1,000; 1,000; 1,000; 1,000; do you think that would help you
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especially if that money could be earmarked or put towards.. .1 think the biggest thing
is enforcement. That’s what they’re asking for. What do you think?
MR BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Member Victorino, yes and I think besides that, as well besides getting
more of that revenue in, it’s those that are carrying those 8 or 10 or 12 permits, you
know, who’s been getting away with just paying 500 for the year and don’t use it but
maybe once a year. It may alleviate them to actually give it up or just turn it back in
and it will be open permit instead of paying that 2, now I’m paying an extra $6,000 for
a permit that w&re not even gonna use. So that may question some of that again
speculation
--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right, right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --but it may clear up some of those permits that are being held on for
whatever reasons or purposes that these companies are doing it for. So that could
ease up some of those permits as well and open it up for someone who may wanna
operate on a full-time basis but never had the opportunity because it was being held
by someone else.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Mr. Buenconsejo, and
thank you, Chair. I think I have an idea where we wanna go but let the Committee
handle that. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions on the fund? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so the 497,368 total is.. .how are you
breaking that down? Do you have a actual use figured out on this fund? I mean, real
generally, I don’t need every penny figured out here but, you know
--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --rent for your park ranger enforcement and X amount, you
know, something like that.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? So the money is being used for that is a variety, you know,
what’s allowed to it. But, you know, replacements of operations for our rangers. For
the certain beaches that have CORA activity, you know, repair and maintenance there
to make sure that, you know, it is up to par. You know, again, as Mr. White
mentioned, if w&re gonna charge a fee, we make sure that the service were providing
is up to par and up to standard and not just taking the money and not doing what our
due diligence is. So the money is used in all those aspects of you know, getting the
park to where it’s at. Some of that money was used a little for the Kanaha Master
Plan. In a sense of just kinda reevaluating it to get to that point of... see, because a lot
-
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of that user groups is, you know, the.. .we have our spots of the beaches that we know
that get heavier CORA vendors, and Kanaha being one of them, you know, Kalama
Park is the other and Kamehameha Iki. I believe those are our three huge businesses.
And when I say huge, I mean some of these businesses are million-dollar businesses
in those three areas. You know, so those are the areas but again we need to keep up
the upkeep of the surrounding areas if w&re gonna be charging a fee for those kind of
services.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you very much. So I guess we’ll talk more
about upgrades and improvements to Kamehameha Iki. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just a general question. You know, we look at all these funds
individually and say you pay so much and you get a license. Do we have any of these
things that we allow people to have permits where we take a percentage? I’m thinking
I heard somebody talk about a million-dollar business. You know, I’m just... I’m
looking for money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I thank you for that. I thank you for that question. Fees under the
statute are.. is through the County be able to recapture its cost in providing services
and administrative requirements. If we were in a private.. .1 would say.. .1 would
already have implemented a percent, a basic fee plus percentage component, but
Mr. Ueoka would not... more than likely will not allow us to consider that as part of a
government fee structure. Mr. Ueoka?

MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. You’re absolutely correct. Those types of percentage fees
are often considered or I’m sure it’s often considered, can be considered a tax. And as
a County government, we only have limited authority to tax, which is our real
property. There may be instances in the Code
--

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Yeah,
MR. UEOKA: --but they’re there and we just. .if you ask us, we wouldn’t support them
further. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I understand that but that’s a law that we made. Can we change
it? I mean w&re talking a different situation here where some of these things are
becoming very, very lucrative. And we get a $2,000 and they get millions. I mean it
doesn’t make... I’m trying to take care of the County and the taxpayers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And we appreciate that concern you have, Ms. Balsa. And I thank you for
bringing it up because by Council action, we have charged this Department to
basically move into enterprise status which means it should be a revenue-generating
Department for this County. And part of it is why your Chairman is looking at CORA
fees. Everything I’m looking at. There’s not one fee or rate I am not reviewing for

adjustments.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair. I just appreciate the opportunity to bring it
up.

CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you for those comments. Any other questions on this fund?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One quick question. Mr. Buenconsejo, how many illegal
vendors do you think are out there? And, you know, you got some numbers so give us
an idea because raising the rate is one thing but the guys who are not paying anything
that’s the guys I wanna get first and foremost. It’s like our taxes. You know, if we got
a guy not paying taxes, not paying the proper taxes, hey w&re losing out. You always
say w&re subsidizing. Well, let’s find out what we are subsidizing. Do you have any
idea, Mr. Buenconsejo?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
Chair, Member Victorino, it’s.. .for the County parks... so what
happens if you have two different jurisdictions in a sense, there’s a bunch of illegal
ones on the State side and they access through the State.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I’m not worried about the State.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. For the County...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let’s concentrate on the County. Sorry, Chair.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah, so back to the County. It’s hard ‘cause it keep crossing over.
But with that with that being said, I have, I don’t know a dozen or so. I really wouldn’t
be able to put a pinpoint on that. That’s something I can work with the CORA
vendors, they have the idea where their parks at and who’s the illegal vendors, I say
each beach park that we do have, let’s just say there’s at least two to three ifiegals at
each beach park that we permit
--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --for surf schools, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions? Thank you, Director, for your assistance.
Look at Fund letter E. Highway Beautification and Disposal of Abandoned Vehicles
Revolving Fund. Oh, youre part of this too, Mr. Director.

-
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, has probably made sure the schedule was appropriate

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
MR BAZ: --so that you could just stay here.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
There’s three departments that are part of this fund; Parks and
Recreation, Public Works and Department of Environmental Management. Mr. Baz,
comments?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair. This fund we did find the very significant discrepancy. The way
that the Department of Finance booked the revenues.., the Department of Finance
Division of Motor Vehicles collects the Highway Beautification Fund. When you
register your vehicle, you pay a $5 fee. Rent-a-cars pay a dollar and that’s in.. .that’s
by State law it’s restricted that they only pay a dollar. By State law also, $2 of that
fund can be used for highway beautification and any additional that we charge goes to
abandoned vehicles and metals programs that we have. The way the Department of
Finance booked the revenues and when we ran a revenue report in the revenue that
we presented here of approximately $2 miffion is erroneous. The revenues they were
booking included transfers in from actually the same fund which doesn’t quite make
sense but that’s the way.. .when we run a revenue report and we print it out, this is
the number that we got. We have provided a response to the Committee on this issue
as well as our own FN-9 response, which has estimated revenues we’re revising to
$744,142. And so I will be working with the Committee Staff to develop or revise
suggestion here for this amount. But basically we’re looking at having to reduce the
highway beautification activities by $312,000 and I have that be funded by Highway
Fund and reduce the Environmental Management’s portion by 354,000 and have that
be funded by Solid Waste so that we can balance out the fund to make sure that we’re
spending it appropriately.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that, Director, on the status. You and I are gonna need to
work on this cooperatively so well find a way to get it done, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. So the departments are here if you have any questions
about the expenditures they provide out of this fund and the activities. But as far as
the fund balance, Mr. Chair, I think, you know, Ill just be working with your Staff on
that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Mr. Ueoka, I would like to know, again, we all heard what Mr. Baz
shared with us regarding State law and whatnot. Can the... this Committee consider a
thing such as a County adjustment fee to make up the revenues we don’t get from
rental vehicles in our County because of this ridiculous State limitation of $1? You
know, I mean we all get it on our bills. Before we had things like fuel adjustment on
your electricity bill, you know, we got.. .we see it on all kind of our bills that we get
adjustments for this or that. So can the County consider a County adjustment fee for
this type of vehicles so that at least we get what our residents are asked to pay to help
maintain the road system?
-
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MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I would say we definitely would have to look more carefully
in detail at the proposal but as far as doing it under a registration, you know, as
the... as part of the vehicle registration, I would say probably not. The law is pretty
clear on that. However, we do have authority to regulate businesses under.. .is
it.. .somewhere in HRS 46-1.5. We’re allowed to do business registrations and stuff
you.. .that may be a possibility for the business itself. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m gonna need to have you give me a indication by this afternoon please
so I can decide whether or not I wanna calculate something in the... over the weekend.
If you can, counselor. I know it’s a last-minute request but... there’s gonna be a lot of
noes if we don’t find money. Members, questions on this fund? Mr. Victorino?

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I just.. .because you had mentioned that I just went into
my last receipt from budget yesterday and there’s a whole mess of fees in there and I
assume, well, those go to the State not to the County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The airport adjustment

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah and the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --and all those.. .we see all those fees, they tack it on, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah they’re, you know, you pay $35 but you end up
paying 50-something dollars because of all these.. .fuel adjustment and all. They
adding it all in. So I agree, I wish Mr. Ueoka could tell us that because I’d like to
throw a County fee in there, you know. Hey, I rent cars all the time. In the mainland,
there’s all kinds of adjustments including county. Go to Clark County. That’s where I
rent cars a lot from. They got theirs in there. So I believe we should look into that. I
agree with you wholeheartedly, Mr. Chair, and I look forward to hearing Mr. Ueoka’s
response because I would like to see us, you know, capture a little bit more on what is
being given out. We pay five, they pay one. I’m not sure about that ratio. Not a good
ratio in my mind. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Goode, since you’re here why don’t you come down, yeah,
‘cause we’re gonna ask if you have any comments you’d like to share for the
Committee to understand your perspective with this fund. Mr. Carroll, any questions
at this time on this fund? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Chair, I wanna be clear on what this fund does. Some of this
fund goes to take care of the expenses we incur in hand]ing these abandoned vehicles?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, if you could...
MR. BAZ: Sure.

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that’s a great question because it’s multiple use of the fund.
thank you for that question.

So

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You’d be surprised by how many calls I get in my office about
this issue.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Baz, if...

MR. BAZ: So yeah, Mr. Chair, we have for the abandoned vehicles program, not added up
here, but pretty significant amount of the funding goes towards that, you know, as
w&re showing here is $865,000 of just operational cost. That pays for the towing, any
disposal fees. They have to hold it for auction. They auction it off. You can see we do
receive around $50,000 in revenue a year from those auctions. So we are recouping
some of that cost but it is a pretty significant portion of this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: But then when a person gets rid of a car, they’re paying for it
right for us to take it away?
MR BAZ: We are requesting to establish a fee of $50 in the.. .this year’s proposal.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We don’t charge now?
MR. BAZ: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So if you have dead vehicles in your neighborhood and you
wanna get rid of them, we’ll come and tow them and we don’t charge?
MR. BAZ: No, you can’t call the County. Yeah, the County won’t do it. The County will only
and maybe somebody from Solid Waste or somebody could correct me if I’m wrong,
but the County will only take abandoned vehicles that are in public right-of-ways. So
if it’s on the side of the road then we can pick it up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That’s why people leave ‘em along the road because

--

MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --then they get towed.
MR. BAZ: Right, then we have to deal with that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Then we pay it but if they call, or they try do it, they have to pay?
MR. BAZ: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I think that’s really important. And I really think, Chair, I have a
real problem with this. I hate dead vehicles all over the place. They make our
neighborhoods really bad and they take up parking that, you know, could be used by
-

18

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 22, 2016

somebody else. And some place I’d like to see us do something. I don’t know. I... the
system we have is not good.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: You know, my... in my neighborhood this week, one of the people
had about six or eight cars and they came and they towed but they didn’t take all
because he couldn’t pay for all. So all the rest are still there and they probably be
there for as long as I’m alive unless we come up with some other way to get rid of it,
but it’s a real issue. I wish people that bring cars to Maui would be asked to take ‘em
out. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your question. Ms. Cochran, questions at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, and I hear Ms. Balsa’s concern ‘cause my church had
to deal with all these other people’s abandoned vehicles on church property. And
basically, department said, well if you just bump it out on County road then it’s free
but in the meantime you need to pay for it so which church is very doesn’t have a
bunch of money but we had to do it that way and then I’ve talked to a lot of ranchers,
farmers ‘cause they have lot of open space land here and they’re tucked away in the
middle of nowhere and people’s dump it on their lands. Now is it their kuleana to
clean up some else’s messes. So I hear what Ms. Baisa is saying and I really would
like to see a way in regards to the abandoned vehicle situation. But I’m looking at this
fund, so can, Mr. Baz, can I get the new grand total again?
MR. BAZ: So we’re projecting a revenue of $744,142 for Fiscal Year ‘17. For Fiscal Year ‘16,
we just sent down an amendment to the fiscal year to cover the losses because we
would be short by June 30th if those losses aren’t covered in this fund. It’s gonna be
zeroed out by the end of the year.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Kind of, I mean all of a sudden we figured out this
has been a discrepancy. But I’m looking at that 865,165 for DEM and that’s basically
to start that entirely new division they want, right? The Environmental
--

MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Sustainabffity Program?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Ms. Cochran, the.. .this is existing funds that were provided for the Metals
and Abandoned Vehicles Program.
We did transfer the Metals and Abandoned
Vehicles Program from Solid Waste’s Operations Program to this new program last
year, right. So but it was just a transfer. It wasn’t an additional request. The reason
why they’re requesting additional funds is because of the increase in abandoned
vehicles that they’re having to deal with.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. All right. Chair, thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I know we might have discussed
this on the floor but I just wanted to double check. Is there a way we can do
a... during registration or whatnot an advance disposal fee on any vehicle that comes
onto the island whether it’s new or used?

CHAIR HOKAMA:

I’m glad youre channeling this money ‘cause I was thinking of that.
Mr. Baz, Mr. Ueoka, are you able to give a response at this time? If not, Ill give you
some time to...

MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, fll work with Mr. Ueoka and, for a response along with your
other question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Just generally speaking the amounts are pretty straight in
what the registration fees that we can charge and stuff are from the Hawaii Revised
Statutes. Expansion on that, again weld look into it further but it’s rather clear on
how much you can charge and can’t charge. Thank you.
MR. BAZ: I did, Mr. Chair

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: --want to add one thing though. If the Committee so chooses the highway
beautification fee that is charged could be raised up to $10. And that would be for all
registered vehicles on an annual basis so... except for the U-drive or the rental cars.
So that’s a possibility that could create extra revenue for this program specifically.
Again, $2 of that $10 then would be for the Highway Street Tree Trimming Program
and then the $8 would be for the Abandoned Vehicles and Metals Program or actually
just the Abandoned Vehicles.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. Yes, we are aware of the $10 maximum
currently allowed by State Statute, but for me it’s hard to ask the resident to pay more
when we got what, almost a 100,000 cars of rentals on our roads? Well weld take a
look at maybe a County highway surcharge ‘cause theyre on our roads. Okay, Ms.
Crivello, you had any questions at this time? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What’s the current balance?
amendment to take care
--

MR. BAZ: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --of the imbalance...
MR. BAZ: So the...
-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Instead of the 1.7...
MR BAZ: Yeah, the estimated fund balance as of June 30th would be negative 423,577.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: So that’s why the amendment was sent.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And so what adjustments will be made to the provisos under this here
in the ordinance?
MR. BAZ: Again the proviso.. .well Ill work with the Committee Staff on the exact details of it
but
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --Proviso 2 would be reduced by 354,000 and Proviso 3 would be deleted.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. The Chair is waiting for the formal submittal from Mr. Baz to
Committee regarding the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget amendments for certain
departments. So I’m kinda unhappy that they weren’t managed better because we’re
basically in the last four weeks of a fiscal year and being asked for a Budget
amendment. I’m not too happy with certain directors and certain departments right
now ‘cause they could have made management decisions that I wish they did. It’s
either that or theyre gonna have to do something drastic if we don’t process the
amendments. They’re gonna either have to close offices, change shifts from full time
to adjusted time to make the budget to finish on June 30th. But that’s what they get
paid for.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll take it up when it comes down,
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Until then, Mr. Victorino, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Well a question and I wanna follow up on what you
suggesting because I have, you know, I looked at the rental contract and I have
highway fee of $3 a day which I know goes to the State. Could we have a County
highway fee or County roadway fee of $3 a day? I mean I would ask Mr. Ueoka to look
into that because...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
-21
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COUNCILMEMBER WCTORINO: And again, you know...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll see what is the

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --flexibility of the County to look at registration and rates.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: ‘Cause if you put that calculation versus the number of
cars versus the number of days, we have
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: I hear you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --a good highway fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I hear you. Yeah. At this lime, I would like to have.., to be fair, I think we
should have Director Stant, Director Goode and if Mr. Buenconsejo, also Director, give
their comments on how this fund is in relationship to their department’s programs.
So, Director Goode, why don’t you give us your comments regarding this fund and
your department’s use from this funding source?
MR. GOODE: Okay. Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Members, David Goode here,
Department of Public Works. You know, currently, under the Highway Beautification
Fund, Public Works does not participate other than perhaps the Teens On Call, small
stipend to maintain the Paia bypass. It’s in this proposed budget that we’re looking to
separate out street trees and the maintenance of street trees from Parks to Public
Works.
So we would essentially become new participants in the Highway
Beautification Fund this coming fiscal year. I covered this I think a bit when we
discussed the Highways Admin Budget. That’s where the proposed position would be
for an arborist within our Department to handle street trees and other vegetation
related matters in the right-of-way. So we’re kinda...we’re new to this game if you will.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Any questions for the Director? You heard that for
Public Works it’s a small component.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so.. .yeah I had a question about the
Arborist’s responsibilities ‘cause you’re really focusing on the right rights-of-ways.
So... and parks has a lot of trees and many other departments, so would that
particular arborist you’re asking for only deal with that but what about our parks and
other areas that trees are a responsibility too? So we’re gonna have two arborists to
run in separate departments? Is that what you’re asking for?

-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Member Cochran, so

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Parks Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --kinda jumping in on that. It’s.. .well, ideally there’s two kind of
scenarios but yes having two separate arborists. I think over the lifehood of the
Arborist currently, there is no way one arborist can accommodate the park’s trees and
again the highway trees. It’s just too much for one person to be able to be.. .juggle
throughout the Maui County now and that’s also travelling to Molokai and Lanai for
any issues that we have with right of entry, right of easements and everything else
with trees or any kind of exceptional trees that needs to be studied. So currently right
now, that would be the ideal situation, is having two arborists but for the most part,
you know, the extent of work that is needed for the highway trees when it comes to
private owners and the County right-of-ways, is where the professional of the arborist
is needed. Our park trees is the contracts that we can get contracted through tree
trimming services and some of these services do have arborists already within the
companies that we contract. So for Public Works, having an arborist is key because
theyre the ones that have the real big issues when it comes to highways and private
properties.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Chair? I mean we just had the ask from Police
Department because of the rooting up of the pavement in parking lots and stuff so
who’s gonna oversee that? That’s not a park thing. That’s not a rights-of-way thing
either. So...
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, so if it’s not in the park parking lot that would fall under Public
Works.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR BUENCONSEJO: If it’s a public, yeah if it’s part of that, their jurisdiction, it would fall
under there. Yeah. So the confusion is with some of the public is that, you know,
because we have the arborist, any private tree or any kind of roadway issues, it’s
coming to the Parks Department or vice versa Public Works is reaching out to us to get
our Arborist to go out and go assess the situation. So that’s where the intertwining is
a lot of that with intermingling with the two Departments with only one Arborist, And
again we have our concerns with our trees, you know, having the maintenance in our
own parks. Like you said there’s a lot of trees in that as well. So, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. All right. Thank you and, Chair, I hear your
concerns in regards to your cook pines and what have you over on Lanai. And for me
it’s not just the trimming aspects of trees but yeah, the health, the growth patterns,
the.. .what kind of trees they are, patterns too. And I wanna thank Director for cutting
down those papayas that I did see with my own eyes topple on top of a truck one day
and we ended up having to of course, you know, reimburse the poor truck owner for
what had occurred, so.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, at this time, Members, I wouldn’t get so stuck on the arborist
proposal for Public Works because it is a proposal, ordinance proposal and until.. .we
could do it through this Committee. I’m not.. .1 may just refer that to the standing
committee where that committee can then work on the actual language and verbiage
of responsibffities and parameter of responsibility. That you can work on those things
that you’re presenting questions at this time, Ms. Cochran.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good, Chair. That will work.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Anything else for Mr. Goode?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victotino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I’m not sure if this is for Mr. Goode or for Environmental
Management but the number of abandoned vehicles we have been picking up per year.
I don’t know which... okay, it goes to them, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It would either be... I think that would be Environmental Management.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We can... I can wait ‘til they come up. So let’s finish

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yup.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --with Mr. Goode but I apologize, sir, I didn’t know who.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, that’s fine. Any other questions for Mr. Goode? ‘Cause the other
Revolving Funds we’ve already discussed with him, the plan review, permitting fee.
We went through that with him already so I’m not gonna review that this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Item G. the Construction Plan Review Revolving
has...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, w&re not dealing with that
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --this morning.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I had.. .1 thought I heard Director Goode mention that to, I
guess move this somewhere else and basically add it in, I don’t know to your
operations or General Fund? So that was my question ‘cause I had a aquestion on this
number” and if that’s what his intent were, was asking a request of this body to do,
then I would like to assist in this budget to perhaps put the monies...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Goode, you wanna give a short comment on, response to that?

MR. GOODE: Sure, Chair. And, Ms. Cochran, the.. .well it’s not specifically proposed in this
budget. It’s actually not even in IEM. But we’re certainly amenable to having it moved
to the General Fund and to those fees that are generated put goal to General Fund
moving forward. And we also covered this in one of the responses back to the
Committee earlier this week.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Good. Thank you. Just wanna update.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Anything else for Mr. Goode? I know Mr. Goode has
additional requirements so, Mr. Goode, thank you very much for your assistance.
Director Stant, if you can give us.. .wait, is there any other questions you want for
Parks Director? Questions for Parks Director? This is the last fund that he would be
participating with us this morning. Having none, thank you very much. Director
Stant, why don’t you come join us please upfront with Director Miyamoto?
Gentlemen, thank you for being here. We would appreciate some comment regarding
your Department’s use of this funds from this particular revolving component.
MR. MWAMOTO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ill provide some comments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
MR. MWAMOTO: For the abandoned vehicle portion, we... the contracts for the five areas on
Maui that we tow from Upcountry, East Maui, South Maui, Central and West Maui are
where the contracts primarily come from. We also have, once we tow the vehicles we
need to put them in a storage yard so we also have a storage yard where we also
conduct the auctions, about once every two months we have an auction of our
abandoned vehicles. We run an ad in the paper and we actually go out and run the
auction. So that’s primarily where that, those funds are utilized for the Abandoned
Vehicle Program. With the highway beautification, the Malama Maui Nui is our
recipient and they help us with a lot of the things that the Highway Department can’t
handle, can’t help us with. They do a lot of the emergency type cleanups. They help
us with any appliances alongside the public right-of-way. We have them go out and
take inventory. We have an arrangement with Hammerhead Metals to process it
for.. .part, as part of our contract with them also. It’s part of the metal’s contract also.
So those are two primary focus that, focus areas that we have with those two funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
comment?

Okay, thank you.

Director Stant, is.. .would you care to add any
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MR. STANT: No, not at this time, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Victorino, questions for the gentlemen?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
I think you heard my question earlier.
How many
abandoned vehicles per year are we picking up from our public right-of-ways?
Obviously, I know we assist sometimes on other areas but let’s focus right in on our
public right-of-ways.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Deputy?
MR. MIYAMOTO: Yes, I don’t have the latest numbers but I know on an average auction
time, we have about... around 30 to 35 vehicles. So you figure we do that 6 times a
year so probably about 1,800 vehicles per year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s a chunk of vehicles. Okay, and that’s just the ones
you auction off? What about those that are just like stripped? I mean just.,.
MR. MWAMOTO: You’re exactly right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It’s...
MR. MJYAMOTO: There’s.. .we have abandoned vehicles and we have derelict vehicles.
Derelict vehicles -are no longer mobile so those go straight to the processor. I don’t
have the numbers for the derelict vehicles at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would like to have that number, Mr. Chair, because those
are direct cost with no, really with no revenue retrieval. You know, it’s not like we can
auction ‘em off and make a few dollars back. Even though we may be making pennies
on the dollar, we have absolutely nothing with the derelict vehicles so I’d like to know
what that number is if you don’t mind, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, yeah. Thank you for that. Mr. Carroll, questions? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Department. The contract
with Hammerhead, I’m just trying to figure the taxpayer pays for the registration to
help assist in this fund. The money now goes to a contract for Hammerhead to
process our metals, abandoned vehicles, what have you so but the driver goes there,
brings their car, theyre charged a $50 fee. But yet if they left it on the County road
then it’s they’re not charged. I mean, you know, what I mean. It’s like. ..so it’s almost
like they bought into a program to help assist but then theyre being a good citizen in
cleaning up their opala in a responsible way but now getting charged and tagged and
it’s.. .so I don’t know. Seems kinda unfair in a sense, and Hammerhead, I’m assuming
-
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is making a profit on this too. Otherwise, they wouldn’t be doing the service. So I
don’t know how to... that’s like that circle and cycle is not conducive to people wanting
to be good and not dump it on the side of the road basically is.. .so I’m trying
to.. .wonder if Department has tried to, I don’t know, look at a way to make it palatable
for people. ‘Cause I think at one time they paid you to bring metals in. Now it’s
reversed and it’s due to perhaps just the, you know, the market trend of that, so I
don’t know if the Department has any comments, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Miyamoto?

MR. MWAMOTO: Yes, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, the metal prices have dropped
dramatically from the good days when we used to pay people for their vehicles to now,
I mean it’s almost like 500 to $100 per ton. We had heard what Member Couch had
suggested before about possibly... is there a voucher system that we could start looking
at so that we don’t have to go through this whole, us, the County paying a tower and
then having to pay the processor.
Maybe if we had a voucher system some
kind.., something that would provide some assistance to these people, we could have
them, you know, defer some of the cost. And so w&re looking into it and I think our
EP&S staff are looking into the numbers as to what, you know, possibly could be done
in that aspect, come up with a number.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Well, I appreciate that you’re giving it some thought.
Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I know when, you know, we got into
this back in, you know, 2004, et cetera, there was issues about going after the last
registered owner. And we had worked a way that we are able to get some funds back
from that. How’s that going? Are you getting money from the last registered owner,
charging them for what it cost?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. MWAMOTO: Mr. Chair, at this point we don’t have the staffmg able to really get involved
in that. I remember, back as you’ve mentioned, back in 2004 actually that work was
being done by the Director of Public Works Office, Director Arakawa and myself along
with one of the executive assistants from the Mayor’s Office were actually pursuing
that. Because of the number of vehicles being towed and the process that we have set
up, the two staff that we have in the Abandoned Vehicle Program have enough... their
hands full enough just trying to get the vehicles, as you say, taken off the roadway.
You know the challenge is with the public always saying, you know, these vehicles are
sitting on the road too long. The challenge for us is that we have to wait ‘til a police
report actually gets ified with our office. And then we can proceed. So as soon as we
can get that police report, the sooner our staff can go out, verify it’s still there and
then send the towing agency out there. So right now with the two staff, we don’t have
that ability to get into that part of the recovery for fee at this point.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: When you did go after them, what was the recovery rate? I’m
wondering if it would be worth it to have a dedicated staff for that.
MR. MWAMOTO: Having been in the Director’s office when we were actually doing that, the
amount of... I would say probably more than 75 percent of the people that we
contacted, they, you know, they had already sold the vehicle and the person they sold
it to didn’t turn in the registration. So like technically they’re stifi responsible for that
vehicle. So it was very difficult to try and get these people to make payments on these.
I had one young lady who was in an accident on Hana Highway and her vehicle
got.. .was a derelict and her mother being very conscientious paid, wanted monthly
payments or some ldnda payment plan but they were already in Wisconsin when they
were sending me the money. So it was very difficult. We’re fortunate that they were
conscientious and paid the bill but it was coming from Wisconsin.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So it may or may not be, I mean it doesn’t sound like it’s cost
effective?
MR. MWAMOTO: Yeah, that’s why we’re really, you know, we’re really emphasizing to people
if you sell a vehicle, make sure you get the
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah.
MR. MWAMOTO: --title transferred ‘cause you’re still responsible if it’s left alongside the
road. If they strip it for its parts and it’s left alongside the road and the VIN numbers
are still there, there’s two VIN numbers per vehicle so yeah, that’s been a big challenge
for our Abandoned Vehicle staff.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And the other thing is is, you know, if I’ve been hearing
this correctly, if I were to take my car into Hammerhead, they’re gonna charge me?
MR. MWAMOTO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: How much do they charge?
MR. MWAMOTO: It depends on what elements are still attached to the vehicle. For example,
if it still had fluids, if it’s got batteries, if it’s got a.. .you know, some of the hazardous
materials that they would have to do. They have a sliding scale now for the public
generally for that, those types of things.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And what’s that? Do you have an idea what that scale is? And
what I’m getting to is, what does it cost us to go through the whole police
abandonment
--

MR. MWAMOTO: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --situation then tow and what it’s costing us to do it versus
somebody taking it in there? Why don’t we try and reimburse the people? If they
bring it in, we can reimburse them for the...
MR. MWAMOTO: Yeah. I don’t have the numbers with me right now. I’ll work with, I can
work with our staff to put together the numbers of the cost of... ‘cause typically like
when w&re, when it was out of the Director’s office, we would have a towing cost, we
would have a storage cost and then a disposal cost. So I remember we used to have
those three elements and
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Exactly.
MR. MWAMOTO: --if we can do that on a per vehicle basis, we can get an... obviously it’s
gonna vary by area which
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
MR. MWAMOTO: --it’s towed based on the contract but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But it seems like it would be cheaper for us to just say, hey,
Mr. Miyamoto, take your car in there. Get the receipt and we’ll reimburse you.
MR. MWAMOTO: We can come up with those

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Much cheaper it seems like.
MR MWAMOTO: --the cost for the five different areas ‘cause that, basically five different
towing areas, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair,
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Nothing, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Nothing more.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anything else, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I await the numbers and, you know, some of these
ideas are great but I can tell you right now, one lady that will never let a car be sold in
our house is my wife. She goes down with whoever she sells the car and make sure
they register right there and then. And I...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Smart lady.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Chair.

Because of what has happened in the past.

Thank you,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Smart lady, smart lady. Okay, thank you very much, gentlemen, for
joining us this morning regarding this fund. I believe that is all we have with you this
morning so thank you for being here this morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Real quick, can I get a quick question in before they leave?
And...
CHAIR HOKAMA: On the fund?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Hopefully to.. .the comment that was made in regards
to not finding VIN numbers and licenses that go back on the previous owners thing,
perhaps Police Department could look at that while theyre writing up their report. So
all that information gets transferred to this Department. ‘Cause Mr. Miyamoto is
saying, they don’t got the staff to do that anymore but wouldn’t that be part of a
discovery in fmding the abandoned vehicle and the police officer writes it into their
report which moves into their Department from there. So that was just a suggestion,
Chair, in order to recoup monies from past...

CHAIR HOKAMA: Well I think it’s easy capture the money upfront. So maybe
the car dealers, anybody that sells a vehicle, part of it will include an X
disposal fee built in and then we’ll capture that. We’ll place it in a
account then those derelicts, abandons, will be expensed out of that
fund. So people will pay in advance regarding disposal, Okay.

we just go to
amount, $50
trust agency
trust agency

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good idea. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, gentlemen. Housing Human Concerns?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Oh, okay sure. As we bring the Department forward and get
ready, weld be in recess ‘ifi 10:30
(gavel)...
..

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

.

10:19 a.m.
10:33 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel)... We are back in order. We shall move to Department of
Housing and Human Concerns. W&re gonna take things out of order. We are
awaiting, we have just received from the Director of Budget additional communications
.

.

.
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as it revolves [sic] the balances for the Financing and Buy-Back Revolving Fund. So
we are going to move down to at this time to letter P is for Kaunoa Senior Services
Leisure Program Activities Revolving Fund. Mr. Baz, any opening comments?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So Chapter 3.37 of Maui County Code established the
Kaunoa Senior Services Leisure Program Activities Revolving Fund. This allows the
Department to collect fees and pay for activities that are related to the Kaunoa sites
on, in Spreckelsvffle, Lahaina, and on Lanai and Molokai. So the Department is here
to answer any questions you might have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. So these numbers are.. .we can take this as
accurate balances and projected revenues for the incoming year, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair. So the.. .yeah, this fund there’s no transfers in so it’s specifically
just the revenue that they receive and they expend.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Carroll? Questions, Mr. Carroll? Ms.
Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, this is very straightforward. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Ms. Ctivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
funds?

Just a question, refresh my memory of what the source is of these

CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Department can answer but its fees paid for by the participants in the
program so seniors that are participating in those activities.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That’s what I thought so, okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No question at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Again it is... and then, Department, are still using the funds? What
are you taking, using fees for currently out of the fund?
-31

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 22, 2016

MS. GRIFFITH: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Griffith?
MS. GRIFFITH: Ruth Griffith, Administrator at Kaunoa Senior Services. These funds are
fees that are charged to the participants and then turn right back around to pay for
whatever expenses were incurred for that particular activity. It’s a straight in/out
fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
So, you paying salaries, you paying offices, you using.. .paying for
equipment, all out of this fund?
MS. GRIFFITH: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Griffith?
MS. GRIFFITH: No, not at all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So youre not using any of these monies for salaries?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA:
This is a... so how does the service providers under Leisure get
compensated? How you folks compensating them? Are they all volunteers?
MS. GRIFFITH: Chair, you’re referring to the instructors, our normal

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Instructors.
MS. GRIFFITH: --our everyday instructors?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Instructors.
MS. GRIFFITH: Theyre considered non-civil service employees. They are paid out of the
County account. But theyire very, very limited, very limited in the amount of hours
that they each teach, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, okay. Mr. Victorino, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, and so, give me and the public an idea exactly what
is paid out of this. Buses? Transportation? Food? What is paid out of this so that
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the public can understand specific? ‘Cause you’ve asked what employees and all and
you said no, no, no. What is paid specifically?
MS. GRIFFITH: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Griffith.
MS. GRIFFITH: So this would be, for example if we took you to the MACC, this would pay for
your tickets. This would pay for any busing. This would pay for the meals that go
with it. And that would be it. So it would be...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that’s a direct in and out. So they pay...
MS. GRIFFITH: Direct in and out cost.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So if it cost $25, they would pay 25?
MS. GRIFFITH: That’s correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. All right. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair.
accumulated over $200,000?

If it’s a direct in and out, how is it that we have

MS. GRIFFITH: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Griffith?
MS. GRIFFITH: We actually don’t accumulate $200,000 and that’s a little misleading. The
chart is misleading ‘cause it looks as if we are making an additional $200,000 and the
following year’s balance will be $400,000, which is not the case.
We collect
approximately $200,000 from the participants. We also spend out that amount of
money in any given year. So that’s looking at kinda the grant revenue what’s just
coming in. So we don’t actually accumulate that money. However, if you were to look
at the IFAS program, our balance at the end of any fiscal year will reflect money that
we, was collected for the next two months because we actually schedule events two
months ahead of time. So the participants are paying ahead of time. So there will
always be a positive balance in that account which reflects a two months prior
planning.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions on this program, Members?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Easy.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s a pretty straightforward

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --program so very good.
Fund. Department?

Let us go to J. Animal Management Revolving

MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, while she’s preparing her comments. The balance available in that
fund estimated as of June 30, ‘16, we lowered it a little bit to 97,959 based on the
actual expenditure so far this year. As you might remember, this past or the current
fiscal year, $180,000 of it was spent, 150,000 for operations for the Maui Humane
Society’s Animal Enforcement Program and $30,000 for Molokai to assist them I think
with some equipment. So the actual is 97,959, and anticipated revenues is again that
68,124.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Director, comments?
MS. REIMANN: Aloha, Chair. Thank you, Members of the Committee. So the fees are
collected from the Maui Humane Society for licensing and redemptions, adoptions,
picks up... picking up of animals, et cetera. And we have the representative from the
Humane Society should you have any questions. Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: DMV also.
MS. REIMANN: Oh, excuse me, DMV also collects.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Carroll, questions on this fund? Mr. Carroll, any
questions on the fund? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Not at this moment, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, wait, Chair. Just clarification, so this is strictly from
licenses, dog tags, basically here? And then you mentioned that also DMV collects
and that via DMV and animal... Maui Humane Society collectively then the funds go
here?
MS. REIMANN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And what, Chair, just I know you always bring it up
why don’t we tag cats and tag everything else ‘cause they’re animals and people have
as pets not just dogs. What was the reasoning? Do you recall back in the day when
this was created that it was strictly just for dogs and not really any other animal?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or is that a HRS thing?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Part of it is old, historical approach to animal management. It’s always
been about the dogs for whatever reason that I can recall. I mean, I always remember
from, even the late ‘50s buying dog tags, bicycle tags, things like that. So, I bring it up
because I don’t know why we just pick on dog and dog owners? I mean how much did
we just spend on cats? You know, so I have a different perspective regarding animal
management coming from a rural community. And we deal with those issues in a
rural manner.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions,
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I concur with your comments. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But I think, Members, we need to look at it. This is a

.if you wanna put
more monies, then you need.. .we should consider how we’re gonna raise funding. And
if this is about all animals then it should be more than just dogs and only dog owners
paying fees. Department, do you have any recommendations on revenues for this
program under this fund?
. .

MS. REIMANN: In regards to other animals, I believe the State sets the rules. Jeff, did you
have something on that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, if you can give a comment, now is the time. If you are unable
to, just let us know.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. It’s... I believe we only do dogs because that’s what’s talked
about in HRS Chapter 143 is dog licenses. It doesn’t talk about cats or anything.
Thank you.
MR. BAZ: And so, Mr. Chair, if.. .maybe this is an item for the... I don’t know which standing
committee handles.. .oh, animal management is Stacy, Member Crivello’s Committee
so maybe this is an item to refer for future discussion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we’re just dealing with the fund at this time.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So with that, any other.. .Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
So in response to Mr. Ueoka’s
comment, does that prohibit us from doing licensing, anything other than dogs, the
HRS?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka?
MR UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. I don’t believe it’s a prohibition. We can probably discuss
that further in committee though, Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you for that comment. Okay, Members, anything else under
letter J. Animal Management Revolving Fund Chapter 3.84? Okay, let’s go to the top
of the list, letter A. Housing Interim financing and Buy-Back Revolving Fund, Chapter
3.32 of the Maui County Code. Department, comments on this fund?
MS. REIMANN: Yes, thank you, Chair. So while there is a balance of $1,521,206.74, of that,
$1,507,472.82 of the funds are from a Seibu agreement that dates back to 1984 as an
in lieu payment for the Makena Hotel project. The document once again was signed in
1984 agreeing to a payment of $456,000. It’s since acquired a lot of interest, and it
requires that the County “shall use best efforts to have the assessment funds
administered by the Housing Division of the Department of Human Concerns in
connection with the construction of housing suitable for employees in the Central
Maui area.” So it’s dedicated to Central Maui projects. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I would still be inclined that the Department move forward
‘cause, you know, I feel pretty bad. Here we are 32 years later, and the money that
this should be benefitting for those Seibu employees may not actually be there
anymore, which for me is a pretty shameful crime on our part because part of the
agreement is we would have put up those housing to assist some of those employees.
We have not performed and that’s why I’m not too sure if we should be accepting in
lieu contributions anymore. I’m looking at maybe requiring that they build the units
because were not doing the units.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Nope.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s not right for those employees whose development agreements require
those units to assist them with their affordability issues. So now, we have a fund
collecting interest.
Not one of that Seibu employees has any benefit from the
requirements of payment by their previous owner. That’s a crime. Okay and we keep
talking about the affordable issue.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah, that’s right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, let’s not take the money if we’re not gonna build the units.
should make them build the units first before they build their markets. Let’s do it
how our sister counties do it elsewhere. They put the roads in first. They build
affordables first, then they’re allowed to build the rest. Because it surely is
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working the way we’re going about it with the luxury markets up first and then we
hardly see the affordables.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: That’s right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: It doesn’t work. So the first question is, why is the Seibu money in the
Interim Financing and Buy-Back Revolving Fund?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. As this item came up, I believe a couple of years ago...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, because it was being proposed for a use that wasn’t appropriate for
that monies and that’s why I brought it up. It was a big thorn in my butt. It was
being proposed for what I thought was inappropriate use years ago.
MR. BAZ: So yeah, Mr. Chair, the research was done back then but the Department of
Finance had just been holding on to it in this fund because there was no other fund to
put it in at the time. This was the.. .there was no, you know, 2.96 hadn’t been
approved. There was no Affordable Housing Fund so the Department of Finance put
the fund in this... this was the only Housing Fund that they had available I guess to
put it in.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right. Anyway, we’re gonna bring it up next or eventually. But we
now have the Affordable Housing Fund so why didn’t we transfer from Interim to this
fund?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I did try to recommend that to Department of Finance.
were hesitant without action from this body to recommend that.

They

CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause haven’t they placed the KOR dollars in this fund? The Affordable
Fund?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, anything that’s been collected after the establishment of the fund of the
new.. .the Affordable Housing Fund, that we’re gonna be discussing shortly does go
into that fund and has been, you know, or is being utilized. This is a carryover from
before, again, the Affordable Housing Fund was created.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Baz. Mr. Carroll, any questions on
this Interim Financing Revolving Fund letter A? Thank you. Ms. Bthsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so this... the Buy-Back Revolving Fund... so basically
this number shouldn’t even be here to start with? So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The majority of it, again, is for a specific purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Program either right?

I mean just and I guess we don’t even do this Buy-Back

CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We have but we don’t any longer.
MS. REIMANN: Chair, thank you. We do.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We do?
MS. REIMANN: We do buy back, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so, sorry maybe I should know

--

MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, if I can explain?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --what the balance is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. 3AZ: Thank you. We have over the past few years purchased and some of the items
have come to this Committee for buy back in certain areas like Waikapu Gardens and
in Kihei. We have that... it’s part of the reason why there’s no more other funds left in
here is because it costs us more to buy them and make them sellable or to resell them
by auction than, you know, it.. .than the person owed on it right? So if we have to buy
it back at a certain price, we pay that price. But when we go to auction it back off, it
tends to be at a lower cost and so we have lost money on those.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it’s not really revolving so much. It is a little

--

MR. BAZ: It’s supposed to.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --but not quite how it’s supposed to.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, the money that we’re collecting from that auction comes back into this fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that’s roughly about $22,000 right now?
-
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MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If...
MR BAZ: There was.. .yeah, there.. .yeah.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not working. Okay. I have more questions on the Affordable
Housing Fund. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello? Mr. White?

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The Chair mentioned that the monies from KOR went into this fund.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, it’s in the Affordable Housing Fund, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh okay. I’m sorry.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That was my point to the Department is we have two similar types but
we’ve placed it in two different funds.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: There is no consistency in how we’re approaching it. And Mr. Ba2 gave his
historical comments.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, I was gonna ask if they went in there, they’ve been spent but the
Seibu money remains in there. And I, you know, I applaud Mr. Hokama’s comments
about, let’s move ahead and spend this.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It is pretty embarrassing that it’s been in here for 32 years and I
applaud the Administration for deciding to use it. However, as Mr. Hokama stated,
none of us applauded the use to which it was being put. Good concept but wrong
players. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
you.

No, enough has been said. We need to move on. Thank

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay and yeah, so we’ll make comment in the Committee report that we
would request a standing committee for Housing and Human Concerns work with the
Department to see how they can expend the money to provide the units to those that it
was intended for as best as possible. I know there’s not much we can do but, you
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know what, we gotta do something. We accepted the money on an understanding and
an agreement, we need to perform.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And the agreement was signed in 1981.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The original document, yes. There’s been a revision if you look at all the
historicals but I can remember that zoning issue in the ‘80s. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that’s.. .interesting sad note is that, that hotel is now being
destroyed and torn down.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is why, Mr. Couch, we need to perform.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It’s being changed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Changed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Changed, changed. Yeah, use the right term please.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Couch.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, is there any other questions on the Housing Interim
Finance Buy-Back Revolving Fund? You also have the response as provided by the
Staff this morning upon submittal from Mr. Baz. Let’s go to alphabet letter H. Rental
Housing Development Revolving Fund. You will have in your... part of the handouts,
our Staff has given you a copy of a Bifi 31 of this year Ordinance 4303, where you
have under the auspices of the Council we have repealed this chapter in its entirety.
Okay. Any questions regarding this fund? Okay, let’s go to alphabet letter 0.
Affordable Housing Fund.
The Chair is considering posting some revisions
housekeeping about April 29th. We shall talk about the fund in its general sense. The
Chair doesn’t plan to go to each project this morning. But one thing I would ask is
how much of the KOR money is in here, Department?
MS. REIMANN: Thank you, Chair. About $3.9 million, just a little more than $3.9 million of
the KOR in lieu fee which is dedicated to West Maui, and we’ve recently issued an RFP
for those funds.
So well be coming to Council shortly to review those
recommendations.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Cochran... Ms. Crivello, I’m sorry. As our standing committee
chair, questions on this component?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, not at this time. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Cochran?

Mr. Couch? Thank you.

Sorry, I didn’t see the nod.

Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so the KOR 3.9 mil for West Maui,
that was kind of stumbled upon. Was it not? It wasn’t truly understood it was quite
there. My, well in a sense I never heard of this dollar amount. I’ve been here six years
and didn’t even know of it, its existence that was restricted to West Maui ‘cause I sure
as heck would’ve jumped on it long time ago to make sure the intent of why this
money is put here was gonna be utilized. As Chair has mentioned, this kind of money
was there for a purpose and it was to physically build homes for people. And so
having looked at the balance for West Maui, it also showed somewhere around
$345,000 given to Lokahi Pacific to build something in Honokowai? Was that done?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MS. REIMANN: Chair, that was before my time but I believe it was not completed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so where’s that money?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MS. REIMANN: I don’t have that.. .1 wonder if Linda might have some information on that?
MS. MUNSELL: Yeah, I apologize. Buddy Mmeida, the Housing... sorry. My name is Linda
Munsell. I’m a Housing Specialist with the County of Maui Housing Division, and
unfortunately, I’m filling in for Buddy AImeida who is the... or the Administrator. He’s
on Oahu today. We can get that information to you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
money is?

Chair, yes please.

If I can request to find out where that

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we shall forward your request, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That’s all I have right now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You’re not, we’re not talking about individual projects at this
time? Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No. Mr. White?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. The balance of 20 million--this is for Mr. Baz--I’m
assuming that once a project is encumbered, that it is dropped as a proviso, but are
the encumbered unspent amounts still listed in the balance? And if so, can we get a
breakdown of what amounts remain? ‘Cause if you take out the amounts that are
proviso’d, the remaining balance is about $18.3 million. I don’ t think we have that
level of funds actually available.

MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I can provide a breakdown. But yes, youre correct. The balance that we’re
expecting as of June 30th is a fund balance, which includes encumbrances so Ill get
you the breakdown of that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Do you have a sense of what the total encumbrance is?
MR. BAZ: I have to look it up.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, that’s fine. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I still think it’s important for us to know of that 25.5 million, how
much is tied up and how much is available.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman, sir, any questions under Special Funds letter 0.
Affordable Housing Fund?
COUNCILMEMBER OUZMAN: No, not at this time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. Mister... and you said not to talk about the specific
projects because I just.. .1 was looking for that big chunk for.. .never mind. Ill check
with the Department and Ill ask the question as far as where that Upcountry project,
the Kulamalu project ‘cause I thought there was a big chunk of money. I see...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Their Council approved a

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --healthy size appropriation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah and that is why as your Chair understands it, it is not part of the,
this current list because we’ve removed it and it’s now on an.. if you look at your
quarterly reports, you will see a project and then you will see the project listed with
the funding there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Affordable...

As a.. .but it’s coming out of the Affordable Fund?

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: It’s been encumbered already.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It’s been encumbered already so this 25 million...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The Department has executed an agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this 25 million is what we have available?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is what Mr. White has requested.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Baz will assist the Committee in coming up with the accurate...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
you, Chair.

Okay, that’s what I was trying to ascertain also.

Thank

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Okay. Because there is the KOR money in this fund, I
know I told you don’t talk about projects, but I’m gonna make it clear to at least one of
‘em under No. 6, Kaiaulu, the Chair doesn’t feel it is appropriate under the, this fund
to request this kind of money from this Committee.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I agree.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So the Chair won’t consider it, but I would say to the Department, I would
direct you to consider the request under another component, basically Chapter 2.94
where we have received in lieu from KOR $4.24 million for West Maui Housing,
Workforce Housing Programs. There is approximately a balance of $3.9 million in this
specific fund. We have already granted 340,000 out of this fund to Lokahi Pacific for
its specific Honokowai Project. I would ask the Department that they might want to

-
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consider that Kaiaulu request under this component for consideration and the Chair
will leave it at that, okay. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you veiy much, Chair. And if this is inappropriate then
we can handle it another way but I’m thinking about the policy of how we use this
fund. And I remember a few months ago, we had a big problem with the Lokahi
project that they’re trying to build in Wailuku because they needed an additional
waterline, a lot of money.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And it was mentioned that we might want to use affordable
housing money to take care of that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I will be presenting you a proposal in my.. .I’ve thought about it hard,
Ms. Baisa. Pvc listened well and I am.. .1 will assure you that I will give you a proposal
on Monday on how I would like us to consider approaching that project and that
concern.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
built. Thank you, Chair.

Anything that gets affordable housing

CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand. I’m with you, Ms. Baisa. So I will be presenting a

--

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --proposal.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. So I can provide the cash balances available for each section. The
Countywide Affordable Housing Fund, which is the general pot has a cash balance of
4,535,000 so you’d have to go and reduce the provisos that are listed in here to cover
those. The West Maui one as was mentioned, 3,909,000. There’s a balance available
in the Lower Main Habitat for Humanity Project of 470,000. Balance available in the
Kulamalu of about 11 million as they just entered into the construction contract of
that so they just started making payments. And then there’s a Na Hale 0 Maui
encumbrance of $780,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that update, Mr. Baz. We appreciate it.
MR. BAZ: So that’s where the 20 million comes from.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you so much.
Mr. Victorino, I’ll start with you.

Okay, Members, Ri ask if you have questions.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, thank you for that breakdown, Mr. Baz. I was very
interested to know what was encumbered already. I think that’s... one of my concerns
is the encumbrance and what do we have as a true balance. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Guzman, any questions, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Not really questions but I appreciate your consideration for
the Item 6 as far as the Kaiaulu Kaanapali Project from the core fund because that
makes a lot of sense if it’s like 100 percent affordable. Yeah, so, I support your
consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Sorry, I didn’t quite get the breakdown
that Mr. Baz just mentioned in regards to the 3.9. You were saying 470 for Habitat
and then 780 for Na Hale. That takes out of that 3.9?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
MR. BAZ: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz, if you could a...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, so they two Lahaina projects...
MR. BAZ: Those are separate items.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BAZ: The West Maui $3.9 million is the cash balance available right now. The Habitat
for Humanity was a Lower Main Street
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --so Wailuku project and Na Hale 0 Maui I think was in, I’m not sure where but I
don’t think it’s in West Maui. Oh it was?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, the Kahoma...
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MR. 3AZ: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair.
MR BAZ: Yeah, but it’s,. .wasn’t taken out of the $3.9 million. No.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, that’s where I was a little confused. And, Chair, I

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --heard your point. I look at this fund as actually homes
but I see how Kthaulu is saying it’s gonna offset to make, keep it affordable. I
particularly am not in favor of utilizing the funds this way and that’s my take. And I
heard your opening comments too but youre focusing on the bigger pot. You’re not
supportive but yet supportive of taking it out of the West Maui restricted part of it. So
for me it’s still an Affordable Housing Fund regardless what part it comes from and I
don’t... ‘cause this project is going to be built regardless. And this project is saying it’s
affordable so theyre gonna do it with or without this help ‘cause it is, it’s mandated by
the Bach Corporation that’s being built out in Napifi in order to do this. So they’re
doing it regardless. I want this money to new projects not on the books, nobody’s
talking about it yet, in affordable perpetuity also. I want perpetuity because what is
the point if a few years down the road they get sold the market not here. We are again
starting from square one trying to build affordable so I really am gonna stick to that
and that’s my take on this. So I just wanted to make comments on that, Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAIVIA: No, thank you very much. We appreciate your thoughts. Who’s next on
questions? Any other questions, Ms. Balsa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Not any more. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll? Thank you. Okay, any other questions on this fund? Okay,
we’re done with Housing and Human Concerns. Let’s bring down Finance and OED.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, Finance, OED, and Budget I guess are the three sections related to the
last bit of items and looks like Ill be taking all three.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Loan Fund.

Okay, let’s start with the F. Molokai Diversified Agricultural Revolving

MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair. Your Environment.. .what is...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: EAR.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Guzman’s Committee. Economic Development, Agriculture, Recreation and
Energy Committee discussed this matter a number of times this past fiscal year. The
-
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money is not available to be spent in the current State Statute that created it that
allows us, or that funded this. It’s State monies that we received. There is a bill in the
Legislature. I don’t know the current status of it, to revise that Act 387 from 1984 to
be able to utilize this monies for a different purpose. And I don’t know if either
Member Cnvello or Member Guzman might have more information about the details of
that bill and the status, if you want, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much for your comments, Director.
questions on this? Ms. Baisa?

Mr. Carroll,

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I.. .hoping to get a little bit more light shown on this
maybe via perhaps Ms. Crivello or Mr. Guzman. Not at this time, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello?

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. If I may, right.. .what we had to do, the
process through Mr. Guzman’s Committee was to ask the State Legislature to make
amendments so we could utilize these funds today with today’s purpose. And we’ve
come back with that through the Representative DeCoite’s Office. And tight now it
went to Senate, through the House Senate and now is back in Conference. I think at
first I don’t know if they understood it that we already have the funds and there was
some confusion. Is like were they gonna do the appropriation so my staff worked with
the legislative’s, State Legislators but... so what theyire trying to determine now in
conference if there’s an administrative fee that they would appropriate for the handling
of this money that’s been sitting in there since the ‘80s and see how we can. .you
know, so it’s gone back and forth. So right now, it’s in conference and I think our
Representative is in, one of the conferees so I think it looks good. Hopefully they get it
all resolved and understand what this is all about. And the whole purpose now is to
use these funds how it’s been amended to a cost reimbursement for food safety. So if
a farmer wants to establish meeting compliance with food safety and it’s gonna cost
them 10,000, they would come up with the 5 and this fund would provide the other 5.
And it would probably be administered by our OED Kuhao Center. So we’re.. .my staff
is in communication with DeCoite’s staff and hopefully we’ll come out with a clear
understanding. Thank you.
.

CHAIR HOKAMA: You wouldn’t want this to be done on Molokai through State Ag since this
is a... or Health Department thing? Why would.. .what is the benefit of running it
through the County and then the County taking overhead administrative cost that a...
COUNCILMEMBER CRWELLO: Because I know it would be actually utilized on the local
level and I firmly.. .my own experience from within our community, it’s more
responsive getting it from the County as opposed to the Agriculture’s, Department of
Agriculture. And that was my suggestion in working with the Representative in
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making the necessary amendments. So, yeah, because what then we would have to do
I guess is move these funds back so that they would appropriate it to the State
Department of Agriculture and it wouldn’t be in our hands.
CHAIR HOKAMA:

No, I understand that because food safety is not the County’s
responsibility. It’s the Feds and the State’s responsibility.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: It’s actually a Federal mandate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s correct.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And in actuality, it’s part of, in my opinion, part of the
sustainable process to... for the existing farmers because of the food safety compliance
and requirements is just starting up. It’s gonna be rough. It’s gonna be... and there’s
no funding coming down, not even from the State, you know. Not even having. .you
can’t even get like an inspector out there through, you know, and so these are the
kind of things that we can talk farming and we do have farmers that have gone
through the training and are saying, wow, how are we gonna afford this? Yeah,
it’s... so instead of making it an island-wide thing, making it available for the serious
fanners who can meet the kind of matching money, you know. And then if you go
through the State Department of Agriculture, it becomes a loan most time. And that’s
why it was never utilized because the interest rates are higher than.. .you may as well
go to USDA instead of even touching with the Department of Ag interest rates for a
loan.
.

CHAIR HOKAMA: So you’re looking at dissolving this revolving fund then?
Revolving Fund is a... basically is a zero-interest loan?

Because the

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Or cost reimbursement, yeah? I mean you put out five, well
give you five. You need a thousand, well match that. That’s how the new legislation
reads today with the cost reimbursement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So eventually this fund is gonna come zero then?

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I would think so. I’m not sure but it’s just not...
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, it’s the State’s money.
So I mean if, as long as they
understand that. If it’s a reimbursement and there’s nothing else coming back in,
eventually it becomes zero.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
purpose...

We were trying to find a way it can be utilized for the

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right, right. No, I think, you know, I just was trying to make sure
that you can maybe get 5 percent more you use on your island without paying the
County an administrative fee to do our part to administer the program.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That’s why the.. .it’s back in conference ‘cause theyre trying
to come up with a amount to, so that the County would have the 10 percent in
addition to this money, to appropriate the 10 percent to handle the administrative cost
of these funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Crivello, for your comments regarding the future use of
the fund. Again it’s up to 76 people we have no control of. Mr. White, questions on
this fund?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, just the creativity of the 76 always amazes me.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah,
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, I don’t have any questions. It’s just that, you know, in
the EAR Coimnittee we extensively reviewed this and took several months to work with
the Leg. In fact, we actually drafted it and sent it over there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
And so from that point, I think miss.. .not think, but
Ms. Crivello has a very legitimate point in terms of the agriculturalist. They have to
pay for the inspectors, which is strange. It’s a federal mandate so you would think
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --the Feds would supply the inspectors but it’s not that way
at all. It’s that the farmers and ranchers have to pay a certain amount for an
inspector to come in and pay their fee, which is just odd. But... and so this was a
utilization of a fund that we literally could not use. So I know that this was referred to
my Committee from your Committee to work on it and we did the best that we could
and this is what we came up with. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say at the national level, our association is making sure that
Congress is aware of the impact on counties regarding their Federal mandate. And
again it is an unfunded mandate as you shared earlier, Mr. Guzman. And so, yeah, it
is a big issue for our Midwest counties, the Iowa’s, Missouri’s, Kansas, Oklahoma,
Illinois, Indiana. We move to the West, the Wyoming’s, the two Dakotas, w&re all
facing that issue, especially the big ranchers and everybody else with food safety, are
those that are raising the pigs, the poultry farmers, I mean everybody is under great
stress at this time.
So I appreciate your Committee’s work and your
recommendations. Thank you. Mr. Victorino, anything else on this one?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, thank you for covering that, Mr. Chair, ‘cause NACo
has been working on this issue since it first arrived on the scene. And under your
leadership last year, we tried to rectify some of this but it doesn’t seem to have
happened. And to answer the Feds never send any money down. They mandate and
they expect the states to handle it from there. Without money, our State Department
of Health has taken this, you do it on your own dime. That’s the attitude they have
right now. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. And were gonna feel it more now that our congressional delegation
has very low seniority. We’re gonna feel it a lot more. Okay, let’s go to L. Open Space,
Natural Resources, Cultural Resources, Scenic Views Preservation Fund. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. Well make this pretty quick, I know the Committee’s, the Members
have to respond, have a deadline to you. So Open Space Fund again, you know, is 1
percent of our real property taxes as defined in the Charter for various activities
related to open space, natural resources, cultural resources, and scenic views
preservation. We have here, you know, estimated balance about 10.7 million and
about 2.8 million coming in, again it depends on the real property tax once you finalize
that. The projects listed in here are, one is a.. .well two of ‘em are continuation. One
is the Debt Service for the land that we purchased in Launiupoko area with bond
funds. The other is an agreement that we’re working on to condemn. It’s proceedings
to clear up, basically to clear up the title so that we need $304,500 for that and I don’t
know the current status of that with Corporation Counsel but I believe theyre
finalizing that now. The Deputy e-mailed me the other day about that, so. Then the
last one, Mr. Chair, is $2,273,000 which is leftovers, a parcel that we did not, able,
weren’t able to close on in Launiupoko because of the subdivision hadn’t been
completed yet. And so once the subdivision was completed then, by then the funds
had lapsed for this purchase and so the County is on the hook for $2.273 million. It
was originally requested as part of the bond fund issuance and so that’s why it lapsed.
But if the funds, because the funds are available in the Open Space Fund in cash my,
you know, my preference I would prefer to use cash than bond. So that’s why I
proposed it this way. The Committee can take it any way they want to and we just
request that it be funded.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Baz. Mr. Ueoka, explain, give the Committee some
comment because Mr. Baz used the term “County’s on the hook.” What is the “hook?”
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. We entered into an agreement to purchase the parcel and
we need the money now to fulfill our end of that agreement. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And we gave the money. We gave the money, okay. Was.
we were not
the ones that chose to lapse the money, but we gave the money. So I mean... that’s all
right.
Just makes my pressure go up.
Mr. Carroll, questions on this area?
Ms. Balsa?
.

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, Chair, thanks.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
then or is that...

Chair, are we.. .maybe not have to give any more funding

CHAIR HOKAMA: I just was... again that’s why, you know, I’m trying to have Mr. Ueoka
explain to us so we can appreciate the term that was used “on the hook” because we
did appropriate the monies. We gave them what was requested, okay. They made a
decision to lapse the money and now w&re being asked again to go put back money
they chose to lapse.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And so in that respect I guess a finalized contract of
sorts has been or, you know, a negotiation deal, we are gonna pay you X amount of
dollars for X an amount of acres, this is the time and date, and then but yet that
somehow fell through, didn’t occur. So we are in the end still owing, is that where
we’re at? We have to have to come up with this? Or did we pass the deadline and now
maybe not so?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Ueoka, before you respond, you need to inform the Chair whether
or not the discussion that may occur needs to be in executive session.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because I don’t want us to discuss potential liability litigation issues in an
open session until we are aware of what is the parameters of this potential action or
non-action.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, those would, to get into the details of it it would
probably be better done in executive session. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And I’m willing to go there to settle this.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch, let me ask the other Members first.
questions? Ms. Crivello?

Mr. Couch,

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Just the same question I asked on the affordable housing, whether the
10.7 includes encumbered and unexpended amounts.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Give me a moment to pull that up.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
MR. BAZ: I don’t know if you wanna go on with other questions for now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Guzman, you have questions?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
story.

No.

I’ll wait executive session just to get the rest of the

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let me check.
Committee today?

Is this the last fund we have for review by the

MR. BAZ: Just the Emergency Fund, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: And that’s just an easy one to.. .we’re proposing...
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ve heard the Mayor’s comments upon budget submittal. We heard
your early comments during the Budget presentation regarding the Emergency Funds.
So quickly, Members, is there any questions under letter M. Emergency Fund, the
$4 million being proposed? We’ve heard the Mayor’s comments. We’ve heard Mr.
Baz’s comments. This is an annual request that we consider regarding our overall
fund balance, I mean overall budget balances is something that we do know that bond
raters look at and it is part of their consideration on what the rating will be on behalf
of this County so you guys understand, I’m sure you all understand the importance of
maintaining a reasonable and responsible amount in this fund. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair, and I appreciate Mr. Baz’s comments earlier in this
process. My recollection is that his comment was that we needed to have a 15 percent
buffer in our operating budgets in order to be looked on favorably by the bond raters.
But that that was also... that was offset by other funds like Emergency Fund. So the
question in my mind is, do we want to move in the direction of leaving the operating
funds with a 15 percent contingency which is I think what that buffer can be called or
do we want to significantly increase the Emergency Fund and squeeze down the
flexibility in our departmental budgeting? Because I.. .my concern is that we have.., if
we are budgeting with a perceived 15 percent buffer then we’re exposing ourselves to
that 15 percent additional expenditure over and above what might otherwise be
necessary.
So I would favor significantly increasing the Emergency Fund and
tightening down on the departmental budgets.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I would say that is part of the... goes to the ABC accounting to find out how
the monies are being utilized within specific categories and how people actually
will.., how directors will actually manage departments. And whether departmental
fiscal officers are really doing their job in assisting the department on how to make
those appropriate monthly or quarterly adjustments to ensure that they can project
and meet the end of the year without last minute Budget amendments before us with
four weeks remaining in the fiscal year. So I’m open to it and I’m already looking at
doing that
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. White. Other questions on the Emergency Fund, Members? Okay,
Mr. Baz, have you been able to maybe give us a comment on the previous
--

MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --fund please.
MR. BAZ: The Open Space Fund, the $10,751,000 is the actual cash available. The last
expenditure in that was 2014, the acquisition for the Launiupoko properties with the
cash portion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Any other questions on this fund? We have had a
request by one of the Members to enter into executive session regarding the Open
Space Fund.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Could I request the Deputy Director of Finance be retained in executive session as
well?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, you may.
MR. BAZ: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, we have a request by a Member and the Chair will be open to a
motion by the Members that is allowed under Section 92-5(a)(4) of the Hawaii Revised
Statutes and that allows this Committee to consult with our legal counsel on
questions, issues pertaining to the duties, privileges, immunities, liabilities of the
Council, the County, and this Committee. Yeah, the Chair is gonna use 92-5(a)(4) as
the rationale of consideration of executive session.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Chair, I second the motion.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA:

Okay,

we have a motion by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Ms. Cochran.
Members, you know the rules. There is a minimum vote required of six Members to
move this forward. So all in favor of the motion, please say “aye.”

COUNCILMEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say “no.” Okay, motion passes with.. .we have everybody here,
nine “ayes.”
VOTE:

AYES:

Chair
Hokama,
Vice-Chair
White,
and
Councilmembers Balsa, Carroll, Cochran, Couch,
Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

None.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

APPROVE; RECESS
executive meeting.

open

meeting

and

CONVENE

CHAIR HOKAMA: So we shall take a recess at this time to prepare for executive session on
this one specific item and that the Deputy Director of Finance is going to be requested
to participate in executive session with the Budget Director and Corporation Counsel.
We are in recess.
(gavel).
.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

.

.

11:25 a.m.
12:11 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel)... Okay, we shall return to open session. Thank you,
Members, for that, what I thought was required discussion in executive regarding a
issue. At this time let us move to the OPEB component or the post-employment
obligations funding requirements, and I would ask Mr. Baz if he has any comments he
can share at this time.
.

.

.

MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Real briefly, Q. on your Schedule of Special and Revolving
Funds is the Post-Employment Obligations Fund that was created by the County in
Chapter 3.97 of Maui County Code. We, the Administration would like to dissolve this
fund and take this remaining balance of $234,625, which is basically interest that had
-
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been accumulated that we didn’t transfer to the State EUTF because we didn’t have
the authorization to spend the money out of this fund. So that’s the intent of this and
we have proposed in the Fiscal Year ‘17 Budget to fund it directly out of the
Countywide Costs Program as a post-employment obligations of $16,172,000 which is
basically our ARC, 100 percent of our ARC for this year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for those comments. The Chair would just also add that
I’m very open to the request from Mr. Baz. The one thing that I would ask the
Members to continue to consider supporting is language that we would require the
Department to pay our thing... obligation of payments to the State in the first quarter
of the year to maximize the amount of interest our funds can earn to further reduce
the total principal on the obligations. So that is what I would ask of you. Are there
questions for either Mr. Walker or Mr. Baz on the OPEB component? Okay, having
none, I thank you. Just for your information in general, Members, if you look at
Page 8-23 of your Details, you will see at the bottom of that page, under General
Funds that we have 11 positions under General Funds to take care of Leisure program
instructors. So that’s where you’ll fmd the component for the payment for that
program instead of the Revolving Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So I just share that as a point of information. We have gone more than
the Chair had wanted but it was required by your questions and requirements and
comments. So the Chair upon adjournment will leave open for your submittal of your
proposals, considerations, requests, recommendations that they may submit to the
Staff and I will adjust it so that you will have ‘ifi 2:30 p.m. this afternoon. I
understand we’ve run longer and some of you might want some additional time so
2:30, is extending now to 2:30 for you to submit to Staff, okay. We’re not doing this in
an open... so we’re gonna adjourn but Ill keep the thing open for reception of your
considerations. Any questions on that, Members? Two thirty p.m. okay. Anything
further or not the Chair is gonna adjourn this meeting? Having none, thank you very
much, Members. We are adjourned.
(gavel)...
.

ACTION:

ADJOURN:

.

.

DEFER pending further discussion

12:15p.m.
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